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  h. Consideration of unfinished business 

i. Consideration of new business 

 

 

ARTICLE V.  COMMITTEES 

 

Section 11.  Standing Committees 

 The standing committees of the faculty shall be the Executive Committee, the Committee 

on Appointments, the Committee on Educational Programs, and the Graduate Committee. 

 

Section 12.  Selection and Terms of Office 

 Members of the standing committees shall be selected during the spring semester for the 

following year, by procedures specified in sections 14, 15, 24, 28, and 30.  Terms of office shall 

begin on the day following commencement.  The Dean of the College shall distribute to all 

members of the faculty a list of members to all standing and special committees at the beginning 

of each fall semester. 

 

Section 13.  Special Committees 

 The faculty may at any time provide for special committees to study and recommend on 

any matter or matters within its jurisdiction which it may deem appropriate. 

 

 

ARTICLE VI.  EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 

Section 14.  Membership 

 There shall be 12 members of the Executive Committee,  
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 The Dean of the College shall then prepare and distribute a second, or election, ballot 

according to the following rules:  The election ballot shall list twice the number of nominees to 

be elected but also listing no more than one person from each eligible department.  Subject to this 

rule, those persons receiving the greatest numbers of votes from the nominating ballot shall 

appear on the second ballot.  The Executive Committee shall resolve any tie votes. 

 Vacancies shall be filled by reference to the results of the most recent election and in 

order of preference according to the votes cast.  Vacancies must be filled according to the 

eligibility rules outlined above.  Persons selected to fill such vacancies shall be eligible for 

election when their terms expire. 

 

Section 16.  Executive Committee Chair 

 The chair of the Executive Committee shall be a tenured faculty member and shall be 

elected annually by the committee from among its elected members.  The election of the new 

chair shall be conducted at the first meeting of the incoming committee which shall be called by 

the Dean of the College. 

 

Section 17.  Regular Meetings 

 The Executive Committee shall hold meetings monthly during the academic year 

beginning in September on dates to be selected by the chair.  However, the Executive Committee 

may at any regular meeting, by majority vote, fix the date of the next regular meeting. 

 

Section 18.  Special Meetings 

 The Executive Committee shall hold special meetings when called by the President, the 

Dean of the College, or the chair.  The chair shall call a special meeting when requested by three 

members of the Executive Committee or when requested by 10 members of the faculty by a 

petition stating the purposes of the proposed meeting. 

 

Section 19.  Notification of Meetings 

 The chair shall notify each member of the Executive Committee in writing at least seven 

days before each regular meeting and at least three days before each special meeting specifying 

the time, place, and agenda of the meeting. 

 

Section 20.  Agenda 

 The agenda for Executive Committee meetings normally shall be as follows: 

  a. Approval of minutes for the previous meeting 

  b. Announcements by the chair of the committee 

  c. Deanôs report 

  d. Committee reports 

  e. Chair Council and Faculty Senate reports 

  f. Consideration of Unfinished Business 

  g. Consideration of New Business 
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Section 23.  Quorum and Voting 

 Six of the elected faculty members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum 

and all decisions shall be by majority vote of those voting. 

 

 

ARTICLE VII.  COMMITTEE ON APPOINTMENTS 

 

Section 24.  Composition, Terms, Meetings, and Presiding Officer 

 The Committee on Appointments shall be composed of nine faculty members holding the 

rank of professor with tenure appointed by the Executive Committee, no two of whom shall be 

from the same department.  The membership shall be selected so as to be broadly representative 

of the spectrum of disciplinary, scholarly, and research activities in the College of Arts and 

Sciences.  Members shall serve a term of one year, but may be reappointed to a maximum of 

three consecutive years.  The Dean of the College shall set a time and notify members of the first 
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that are appropriate in different disciplinary areas.  Assessment of research faculty who are non-

tenure track faculty shall be based on contributions to scholarly activity and research.  Each 

faculty member whose appointment leads to tenure consideration shall be considered for tenure 

no later than six years after the date of initial appointment to the tenure track. 

 

Section 26.  Procedures 

 At the beginning of each fall semester, the Dean of the College shall draw up a list of 
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ARTICLE VIII.  GRADUATE COMMITTEE 

 

Section 28.  Membership 
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Section 35.  Responsibilities of Department Chairpersons 

 The chairperson shall be the executive officer of the department and shall exercise 

leadership in matters of department policy, including appointments, promotions, research, 

instruction, and department administration, in accordance with Policies and Procedures.  The 

chairperson shall represent the interests of the department and of individual members of the 

department to other departments and to officers of the administration, keeping the department 

faculty informed of administrative actions and the administration informed of department action.  

Within the limitations imposed by confidentiality of individual faculty members, the chairperson 

shall keep the faculty of the department informed on issues of concern to the department. 

 The chairperson shall prepare the departmentôs budget, subject to the approval of the 

Dean of the College.  The chairperson shall monitor the expenditures of the department budget 

and shall report at least once each year to the faculty of the department on the state of the 

department budget. 

 The chairperson shall transmit recommendations for faculty appointments, 

reappointments, promotion, and tenure, together with his or her independent recommendation, 

and shall be the hiring officer for all other personnel assigned to the department.  The chairperson 

shall consult with faculty of the department on appointment of non-tenure track persons whose 

responsibilities include instruction. 

 The chairperson of each department shall transmit an annual report to the Dean of the 

College. 

 Unless the responsibilities are otherwise assigned in the departmentôs own by-laws, the 

chairperson shall, as necessary, convene and preside at all department meetings, appoint 

committees, delegate duties, prepare teaching schedules, maintain records, and conduct 

correspondence. 

 

Section 36.  Chair Council 

 The chairpersons of all the departments shall meet jointly in a Chair Council.  The 

council also shall have a member selected by the Executive Committee from among its members.  

The Chair Council shall meet regularly, and shall be chaired by the Dean of the College.  It shall 

address the common issues which arise from the responsibilities of department administration 

and shall function to share information and exchange views of matters of mutual concern to the 

departments. 

 Departments may choose to form separate groups of chairpersons from departments with 

common concerns.  These separate groups may convene their own meetings or may be convened 

by the Dean of the College.  They also may bring their concerns directly to the Chair Council or 

the Dean of the College. 

 

 

ARTICLE XI.  THE DEAN OF THE COLLEGE 

 

Section 37.  Appointment 

 The chief executive officer of the faculty shall be the Dean of the College of Arts and 

Sciences.  The Dean of the College shall be appointed in accordance with Article VII.A of the 

Constitution of the University Faculty and with the Guidelines for Selection of Deans, Part II., 

Section VIII., of Policies and Procedures. 
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Section 38.  Responsibilities 

 The Dean of the College has academic, fiscal, and administrative responsibilities. 

 a. Academic 

The Dean of the College shall have the responsibility to build and maintain a 

faculty whose commitments and quality are consonant with the mission of the 

college; to provide leadership in undergraduate and graduate student recruitment 

and selection for the college; to achieve and maintain faculty balance and student 

balance in the college consonant with the concept of a comprehensive College of 

Arts and Sciences; to undertake regular and systematic department reviews with 

the goal of improving the quality of programs and research activities; to develop 

and sustain both graduate and undergraduate programs of the highest quality; and 

to represent the academic needs, ambitions, and plans of the college both to the 

university administration, to other constituent faculties, and to outside 

constituencies. 

 b. Fiscal 

The Dean of the College shall be responsible for administering the budget of the 

college to meet the objectives stated in Subsection a. above, and shall 

communicate the fiscal needs of the college to the university and other groups.  

The dean shall aggressively pursue all sources of incomeðincluding endowments, 

grants, tuition income, and giftsðin order to support the objectives of the college.  

Unless otherwise directed by the president, the dean shall serve as vice chair of 

the Case Advisory Board and present appropriate funding proposals from 

departments and programs in the college.  The dean shall review the budget 

periodically with the Executive Committee and shall make an annual report of the 

budget and fiscal status of the college at a regular faculty meeting of the college. 

 c. Administrative 

The Dean of the College shall assure the development and implementation of 

policies and best practices to promote effective and efficient operation of the 

college.  Through engagement with unit faculty and stakeholders, the dean shall 

lead 
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ARTICLE XII.  REPRESENTATION IN UNIVERSITY GOVERNANCE 

 

Section 39.  Faculty Senate 

 The faculty shall provide representatives to the Faculty Senate in accordance with the by-

laws of the body.  All representatives at large shall be elected by a two-ballot process, the ballots 

to be prepared and distributed by the Dean of the College and the election to be conducted by the 

Executive Committee in conjunction with the Dean of the College.  The first, or nominating, 

ballot shall list all faculty members eligible to serve.  Those with the greatest numbers of votes 

shall appear on the second, or election, ballot.  The number of nominees on the second ballot 

shall be twice the number of senators to be elected.  The Executive Committee shall resolve any 

tie votes. 

 To help faculty make informed choices, the first ballot shall also list the current senators 

from the faculty with their departmental affiliations. 

 

Section 40.  Other Bodies 

 In other cases when the faculty is asked to select representatives to university bodies and 

when the mode of selection is not specified, the Executive Committee shall either appoint such 

representatives or designate an appropriate method of selection. 

 

 

ARTICLE XIII.  POLICIES ON APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT, PROMOTION 
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The department or special committeeôs report will be reviewed by the Committee on 

Appointments. 

Tenured faculty receive a written review annually.  Tenured associate professors should 

meet with their chair regularly to review their progress toward promotion.  Each department has a 
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December 4, 1992—Ratified by the Faculty of Mathematics and Natural Sciences 

   and the Faculty of Humanities, Arts, and Social Sciences 

December, 1993—Amended by the Faculty of the College of Arts and Sciences 

April 21, 1994—Approved by the Faculty Senate 

 

October 18, 1994—Amended by the Faculty of the College of Arts and Sciences 

 

March 25, 1999—Amended by the Faculty of the College of Arts and Sciences 

February 10, 2000—Approved by the Faculty Senate 

 

November 30, 2001—Amended by the Faculty of the College of Arts and Sciences 

March 26, 2002—Approved by the Faculty Senate 

 

April 15, 2003—Amended by the Faculty of the College of Arts and Sciences 

October 22, 2003—Approved by the Faculty Senate 

 

May 9, 2003—Amended by the Faculty of the College of Arts and Sciences 

October 22, 2003—Approved by the Faculty Senate 

 

November 30, 2003—Amended by the Faculty of the College of Arts and Sciences 

April 29, 2003—Approved by the Faculty Senate 

 


